# OHIO STATE DENTAL BOARD BOARD MEETING

# September 24, 2025

# Contents

Attendance	1
Call to Order	1
Board Business	1
Introductions	1
Board Members	1
Approval of Agenda	2
Review of Board Meeting Minutes	2
July 30, 2025, Meeting	2
Action Items	2
Board Supervising Members' Expense Report	2
Enforcement	3
Proposed Notice(s) of Opportunity for Hearing	3
Faye V. Asser, Radiographer, EFDA, CP	3
Proposed Consent Agreement(s)	3
Kenneth Antonelli, D.D.S.	3
Meaghan L. Dennison, Radiographer Applicant	3
Proposed Addendum to Consent Agreement(s)	3
Patrick M. Kennedy, D.D.S.	3
Proposed Permanent Voluntary Surrender(s)	4
Ashok V. Deshpande, D.D.S.	4
Case Update	4
Licensure Ratification Report	5
Dentist (51)	5
Graduates of Unaccredited Dental Colleges Located Outside the U.S. (2)	6
Dental Hygienist (32)	6
Dental Assistant Radiographer (265)	6
Expanded Function Dental Auxiliary (51)	9

Coronal Polishing (8)	
Limited Continuing Education (7)	10
Limited Teaching (2)	10
Limited Resident's (1)	10
Reinstatement – Dentist (3)	10
Reinstatement – Dental Hygienist (6)	10
Teledentistry Permit – (1)	10
Oral Health Access Supervision Permit – Dental Hygienist (1)	10
Volunteer Certificate – (1)	10
Anesthesia and Sedation Permit Application(s)	11
General Anesthesia	
Moderate Sedation	11
Committee Reports	11
Education	11
Board-approved Courses	
Definitions of Education	11
New Business	11
Board-approved Permit Renewal Course	12
Law & Rules Review	12
Draft Rules on Lasers	12
Ohio Revised Code Clean-up	12
Ohio Administrative Code Clean-up	
Legislative Update	13
DDH-CSG Compact Update	13
Executive Session	14
Open Session	14
Appointment of New Executive Director	14
Executive Updates	15
President's Update	
Ohio Dental Association Annual Session	
2025 Board Meeting Calendar	
Executive Director's Update	
Riffe Tower Building Updates	
Website Updates to Comply with Americans with Disabilities Act	

Certified Fraud Examiner Course	16
Dental Testing and Regulatory Summit	16
Advisory Committee Meeting – October 3, 2025	16
Anesthesia Consultant Gregory Ness, D.D.S. Retiring	16
Anything for the Good of the Board	17
Ohio Department of Health Oral Health Screening for 3 <sup>rd</sup> Graders	17
Board Business (Continued)	17
Presentations	17
Presentation by Mark Armstrong, D.D.S., Chair, American Board of Dental Examiners (ADEX)	17
Adjourn	18

# OHIO STATE DENTAL BOARD BOARD MEETING

# September 24, 2025

## Attendance

The Ohio State Dental Board (Board) met in the Vern Riffe Center for Government and the Arts, 77 South High Street, 19th Floor, Room 1948, Columbus, Ohio on September 24, 2025, beginning at 1:01 p.m. Board members present were:

Canise Y. Bean, D.M.D, M.P.H., President
Michele Carr, R.D.H., M.A., Ed.D., Vice-President
Paul Kelley, D.D.S., Secretary
Kathy Brisley-Sedon, D.D.S., Vice-Secretary
George Williams, D.D.S., QUIP Coordinator
Teresa Baumann, R.D.H.
Cathy Graves, D.D.S.
Murali Lakireddy, D.D.S.
Robert Limardi, D.D.S.
Mary Kaye Scaramucci, R.D.H.
Wayne Wauligman, D.D.S.

Recently appointed new Board member Sarat Thikkurissy, D.D.S., a Pediatric dentist, and re-appointed Public member of the Board, Trevor Vessels, were unable to attend the meeting.

The following guests were in attendance: Katherine Bockbrader, Esq. of the Ohio Attorney General's Office; Eric Richmond, Esq. and Henry Fields, D.D.S. of the Ohio Dental Association (ODA); Ann Naber, R.D.H. of the Ohio Dental Hygienists' Association (ODHA); Mark Armstrong, D.D.S. of ADEX; Isaac Northrop of Ockerman Consulting representing the American Association of Orthodontists; Thomas Perrino, D.D.S., Esq.; and other guests. Staff consisted of Miguel Santiago, Esq., Interim Executive Director; Corey Schaal, J.D., M.P.A., Deputy Director and Chief of Operations and Legislative Affairs; Donald Andrews, Esq., Enforcement Attorney; Stacey Tuerck, Enforcement Officer; and Malynda Franks, Administrative Professional of the Ohio State Dental Board.

#### Call to Order

President Bean noted that there was a quorum present and called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.

#### **Board Business**

#### Introductions

#### **Board Members**

President Bean welcomed those in attendance to the meeting and introduced herself as President of the Board and a dentist. She then introduced the Board's newest members, both from Cincinnati, Dr. Robert Limardi, a Periodontist, and Ms. Teresa Baumann, a dental hygienist. President Bean asked them to provide the others with their background and then asked the rest of the Board members to introduce themselves: Vice-President Michele

Carr, R.D.H., M.A., Ed.D.; Secretary Paul Kelley, D.D.S.; Vice-Secretary Kathy Brisley-Sedon, D.D.S.; QUIP Coordinator George Williams, D.D.S.; Cathy Graves, D.D.S.; Murali Lakireddy, D.D.S.; Mary Kaye Scaramucci, R.D.H.; and Wayne Wauligman, D.D.S.

## Approval of Agenda

President Bean asked if there was a motion to approve the Board meeting agenda with the caveat to amend the agenda to move the presentation on ADEX from Dr. Mark Armstrong to later in the agenda due to a family emergency.

25-09-01 Motion by Dr. Carr, second by Dr. Brisley-Sedon, to approve the September 24, 2025, Board meeting agenda as amended.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

# Review of Board Meeting Minutes

#### July 30, 2025, Meeting

President Bean informed the Board members that the draft minutes from the July 30, 2025, meeting had been provided to them for review prior to the meeting. She noted that a correction had been made regarding the attendance date, but that the corrected version was being provided for Board member consideration. She then asked if there was a motion regarding the minutes.

25-09-02 Motion by Dr. Graves, second by Dr. Kelley, to approve the Board meeting minutes as presented.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

#### **Action Items**

#### Board Supervising Members' Expense Report

President Bean asked if Dr. Kelley as Secretary and Dr. Brisley-Sedon as Vice-Secretary attested to having spent at least twenty (20) hours per week attending to Board business. Dr. Kelley and Dr. Brisley-Sedon affirmed that they had spent at least twenty (20) hours per week attending to Board business as Supervising Members.

25-09-03 Motion by Dr. Wauligman, second by Dr. Graves, to approve the Board Supervising Members' expense report.

Voice vote.

Motion carried with Dr. Brisley-Sedon and Dr. Kelley abstaining.

President Bean informed the members that Dr. Armstrong was on his way to the meeting, and they would be postponing the agenda item regarding his presentation on ADEX until his arrival. She then turned the meeting over to Interim Executive Director Santiago for the Enforcement matters.

## Enforcement

# Proposed Notice(s) of Opportunity for Hearing

The Board reviewed one (1) proposed Notice of Opportunity for Hearing. The name of the individual was not included in the document reviewed by the Board. The name of the individual has been added to the minutes for public notice purposes. Interim Executive Director Santiago provided a summary of the proposed Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.

#### Faye V. Asser, Radiographer, EFDA, CP

25-09-04 Motion by Dr. Williams, second by Dr. Lakireddy, to approve the proposed Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and forward it to Faye V. Asser, Radiographer, certificate number 51.018328, Expanded Function Dental Auxiliary, registration number EFDA.002356, Coronal Polishing Certificate holder, number CP.001285, and case number 2024-00403.

Voice vote.

Motion carried with Dr. Brisley-Sedon and Dr. Kelley abstaining.

#### Proposed Consent Agreement(s)

The Board reviewed two (2) proposed Consent Agreements. The names of the individuals were not included in the documents reviewed by the Board. The names of the individuals have been added to the minutes for public notice purposes. Interim Executive Director Santiago provided summaries of the proposed Consent Agreements.

#### Kenneth Antonelli, D.D.S.

25-09-05 Motion by Dr. Bean, second by Dr. Wauligman, to approve the proposed Consent Agreement for Kenneth Antonelli, D.D.S., license number 30.017771, and case number 2023-00114.

Voice vote.

Motion carried with Dr. Brisley-Sedon and Dr. Kelley abstaining.

#### Meaghan L. Dennison, Radiographer Applicant

25-09-06 Motion by Dr. Lakireddy, second by Dr. Graves, to approve the proposed Consent Agreement for Meaghan L. Dennison, radiographer application number App-000970160, and case number 2025-00256.

Voice vote.

Motion carried with Dr. Brisley-Sedon and Dr. Kelley abstaining.

#### Proposed Addendum to Consent Agreement(s)

The Board reviewed one (1) proposed Addendum to Consent Agreement. The name of the individual was not included in the document reviewed by the Board. The name of the individual has been added to the minutes for public notice purposes. Interim Executive Director Santiago provided a summary of the proposed Addendum to Consent Agreement.

#### Patrick M. Kennedy, D.D.S.

25-09-07 Motion by Dr. Carr, second by Dr. Williams, to approve the proposed Addendum to the Consent Agreement for Patrick M. Kennedy, D.D.S., license number 30.022998, and case number 2024-00531.

Voice vote.

Motion carried with Dr. Brisley-Sedon, Dr. Kelley, and Dr. Limardi abstaining.

## Proposed Permanent Voluntary Surrender(s)

The Board reviewed one (1) proposed Permanent Voluntary Surrender. The name of the individual was not included in the document reviewed by the Board. The name of the individual has been added to the minutes for public notice purposes. Interim Executive Director Santiago provided a summary of the proposed Voluntary Surrender.

#### Ashok V. Deshpande, D.D.S.

25-09-08 Motion by Dr. Wauligman, second by Dr. Graves, to approve the proposed Permanent Voluntary Surrender for Ashok V. Deshpande, D.D.S., license number 30.020716, and case number 2024-00313.

Voice vote.

Motion carried with Dr. Brisley-Sedon, Dr. Kelley, and Dr. Limardi abstaining.

### Case Update

Interim Executive Director Santiago provided the enforcement update by informing the Board that there are eleven (11) cases pending hearing and one (1) case pending Hearing Examiners Report and Recommendation. He stated there are six (6) licensees and certificate holders under current suspension, forty-four (44) licensees and certificate holders with older suspensions, and there are thirty (30) licensees on probation. Currently, the Board has two hundred and sixty-four (264) active cases. He stated that three (3) new cases have been referred to QUIP and there is currently one (1) case in QUIP. Interim Executive Director Santiago informed the members that sixty-six (66) cases have been reviewed by the Board Secretaries with recommendations that they be closed at this time with eleven (11) warning letters being issued.

Due to the requirement in Chapter 4715.03(B) of the Ohio Revised Code that "A concurrence of a majority of the members of the board shall be required to [...](6) Dismiss any complaint filed with the board.," Interim Executive Director Santiago reviewed the list of cases to be closed with the Board.

The following cases are to be closed:

2021-70-1268	2025-00041	2025-00163
2022-01490	2025-00056	2025-00165
2022-12-1023	2025-00058	2025-00171
2023-00271	2025-00066	2025-00174
2024-00450	2025-00085	2025-00175 - WL
2024-00454 – WL	2025-00090	2025-00188
2024-00455	2025-00096	2025-00190
2024-00473	2025-00111	2025-00196
2024-00484	2025-00113	2025-00197
2024-00501 - WL	2025-00124	2025-00210
2024-00547	2025-00133	2025-00211
2024-00548	2025-00135 - WL	2025-00214
2024-00560	2025-00136	2025-00215 - WL
2025-00009 - WL	2025-00151	2025-00227
2025-00015 - WL	2025-00161	2025-00231

2025-00234	2025-00255 - WL	2025-00291
2025-00238	2025-00263	2025-00305
2025-00241	2025-00268 - WL	2025-00310
2025-00243 - WL	2025-00271	2025-00313
2025-00245	2025-00280	2025-00317
2025-00246	2025-00287	2025-00329
2025-00247	2025-00289 - WL	2025-00394

Prior to the vote to close the above-listed cases, Interim Executive Director Santiago inquired as to whether any of the Board members had any personal knowledge that the cases that were being voted on today involved either themselves, a business associate, relative, or a personal friend.

Roll call: Ms. Baumann – No

Dr. Brisley-Sedon - No

Dr. Carr - No

Dr. Graves - No

Dr. Kelley – No

Dr. Lakireddy – No

Dr. Limardi – No

Ms. Scaramucci - No

Dr. Wauligman - No

Dr. Williams - No

Dr. Bean - No

Interim Executive Director Santiago then called for a motion to close the cases.

25-09-09 Motion by Dr. Carr, second by Dr. Wauligman, to close the sixty-six (66) cases as listed.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

Interim Executive Director Santiago provided an overview of the one hundred and forty-nine (149) current cases being investigated by the Board that are over 90 days old by type and by age.

# Licensure Ratification Report

President Bean stated that the Board's Licensing Coordinator, Samantha Slater, had prepared a report of the licenses, permits, certifications, and registrations that have been issued by the Board staff since being reported at the regular meeting in July. She explained that before the Board members was the listing of license, registration, certification and permit numbers of issuance and reinstatement by the Board staff for ratification by the Board.

#### Dentist (51)

30.028164	Saba Sefidabi	30.028166	Derek O'Connor
30.028165	Hamzah Mehmood	30.028170	Jason Leach
30.028167	Palak Patel	30.028172	Anne-Marie Fischer
30.028168	Petra Boutros	30.028171	Fatima Mahmood
30.028169	Nana Yaw Boamah-Mensah	30.028178	Hershan Octain

30.028177	Shaughn McCormick	30.028196	Jake Kosman
30.028176	Ravnet Randhawa		
30.028173	Baron Edmonson	30.028198	Kaushik Peram
30.028174	Mina Youssef	30.028197	Charles Chilcoat
30.028175	Nader Naguib	30.028200	Kabir Singh
30.028180	David Park	30.028201	Wenmar Barrios
30.028182	Olivia Bartholomew	30.028199	Maria Park
30.028179	Mohamed Rashad	30.028202	Maryam Alqaraghuli
30.028181	Brianna Rodman	30.028204	Prety Amom
30.028183	Grayson Lambert	30.028205	Walid Harsha
30.028184.MIL	Alexander Padalino	30.028207	Felipe Rea
30.028185	Christopher Lind	30.028206	Rylan Dunn
30.028186	Felicia Desai	30.028208	Rahul Shah
30.028187	Harry Nguyen	30.028209	Elizabeth Campbell
30.028188	Katherine Stranieri	30.028212	Hsin-Yi Liu
30.028189	Bella Akkaya	30.028210	Rekha Reddy
30.028190	Marco Tironi	30.028211	Sarah Crain
30.028191	Mykola Stetskiv	30.028214	Trevor Eide
30.028193	Arjang Geramifard	30.028213	Sierra Norvell
30.028192	Nguyen Thao Nguyen		
30.028194	Adam Perry		
	•		

# Graduates of Unaccredited Dental Colleges Located Outside the U.S. (2)

Yasser Jazairi

30.028203

Dental Hygien	ist (22)		
, •			
31.018087	Madison Maynard	31.018102	Preeti Sameera Batchala
31.018086	Abagale McCabe	31.018103	Mariah Bussell
31.018088	Emma Fiske	31.018104	Katelyn Growdon
31.018089	Amanda Dezarn	31.018105	Angela Gage
31.018091	Alena Fatima	31.018106	Emily Hartmark
31.018090	Sherri Graham	31.018107	Rachel Alexander
31.018093	Rachel Cecil	31.018109	Pamela Pesek
31.018092	Shelby Powell	31.018108	Hannah Pekarcik
31.018094	Olga Markevich	31.018110	Leen Saeed
31.018095	Emily Pilarski	31.018111	Ciera Hernandez
31.018096	Kierstyn Bays	31.018113	Hannah White
31.018097	Stella Flanagin	31.018112	Lydia Slonneger
31.018099	Dakota Jones	31.018114	Lisa Demarco
31.018098	Ruth Gillespie	31.018116	Emma Clendenin
31.018100	Allison Cox	31.018115	Ashley Curtis
31.018101	Claudia Rodman	31.018117	Nihal Alkhudair
Dental Assista	nt Radiographer (265)		
51.045767	Abyan Yusuf	51.045764	Brooke Kearney
51.045769	Monika Biernacka	51.045765	Lilibeth Ruiz
51.045770	Noelia Adrovet	51.045768	Samuel Fox
51.045763	Hanah Yousef	51.045773	Anna Earley
51.045762	Rabecca Fredericy	51.045771	Lauren Tackett
51.045766	Emelia Seibert	51.045777	Mira Nofal

30.028195

Orlando Yoris Perez

51.045778	Trinity Robertson	51.045824	Hadassah Adeliyi
51.045774	Amber Reinier	51.045823	Alia Al-Rousan
51.045772	Isabelle Kocz	51.045821	Cora McDonie
51.045775	Allyson Cole	51.045820	Autumn Miller
51.045776	Gweneth Folzenlogen	51.045826	Kwana Cobb
51.045808	Chloee Roberts	51.045832	Kristin Keltz
51.045781	Alison Murphy	51.045833	Elizabeth Klinger
51.045819	Emily Rapacz	51.045827	Amara Littman
51.045805	Kaylee Reddington	51.045829	D'Niyah Shaw
51.045779	Dominique Richardson	51.045834	Maizy Brinkman
51.045817	Osmayra Lezama	51.045831	Marlena Goble
51.045780	Erick Sanchez	51.045828	Alexzandrea Bernardo
51.045797	Grace Randall	51.045835	Hannah Choi
51.045794	Cescily Cowans	51.045830	Megan Richey
51.045810	Brooklyn Barfield	51.045836	Lucia Leyva
51.045801	Mykalynn Caldwell	51.045840	Amity Salyers
51.045809	Skyler Dorsey	51.045838	Serenity Coby
51.045804	Jayden Haskin	51.045847	Ashley Lopez
51.045782	Hayley Skabelund	51.045837	Audrey Maynard
51.045785	Emma Tichy	51.045839	John Compton
51.045784	Demetrius Duncan	51.045844	Julia Wilkinson
51.045783	Alyssa Searles	51.045841	Jasmine Sullivan
51.045795	Jordyn Simon	51.045842	Jodeci Zimmerman
51.045816	Micah Brinkley	51.045846	Chloe Threatts
51.045788	Graysen Hylander	51.045843	Taylor Messmore
51.045789	Bethany Witmer	51.045845	Alexandria Minnick
51.045786	Katelin Wallace	51.045861	Chelsea Bruce
51.045787	Abigail Wingard	51.045853	Durga Salini Surapaneni
51.045790	Daniel Sanchez	51.045858	Kendyll Williams
51.045793	Tierney Emmins	51.045856	Alexis Stricklin
51.045791	Praneel Reddy	51.045857	Megan Allsup
51.045792	Brianna White	51.045859	Alanna Leonard
51.045813	Alexa Laird	51.045852	Abigail Parmenter
51.045796	Taniyah Blair	51.045860	Zoey Carson
51.045798	Nataliia Drych	51.045851	Cadence Clay
51.045800	Ayla Devericks	51.045849	Madison Hellenthal
51.045799	Anyla Atkins	51.045848	Kaitlynn Kopa
51.045802	Aleigha Ramby	51.045850	Mia Elliott
51.045803	Summer Saunders	51.045854	Carinten Murray
51.045807	Abigail West	51.045855	Hailey Reichert
51.045806	Olivia Condon	51.045862	Ana Pimentel
51.045814	Zoe Cormier	51.045889	Lina Edor
51.045811	Kezia Bailey	51.045864	Emily Ostendorf
51.045812	Jamie Baker	51.045863	Khlood Oudeif
51.045815	Mikayla Suber	51.045877	Beau Cutright
51.045818	Katelyn Bernadsky	51.045870	Bryce Crow
51.045822	Sofiya Shirinova	51.045865	McKinsey Dozier
51.045825	Avery Borowski	51.045875	Olivia Keener

51.045876	Padma Koirala	51.045914	Alyssa Warren
51.045873	Harmoni Stone	51.045917	Abishek Sanyashi
51.045866	Kaylynn Reffitt	51.045920	Samantha Magdich
51.045867	Halat Fishatsion	51.045918	Anna Moore
51.045878	Riley Reisinger	51.045921	Celeste Stonebraker
51.045869	Hawa Ibrahim	51.045922	Justice Knauff
51.045868	Allison Bates	51.045924	Stacy Stein
51.045871	Nyah Hamilton	51.045925	Jada Brown
51.045872	Amaliquecia Whitfield	51.045928	Fatema Almadaoji
51.045880	Addison McLaughlin	51.045926	Aubree Jutte
51.045874	Iman Saif	51.045929	Emika Richardson
51.045879	Ella Rembielak	51.045927	Olivia Beldean
51.045886	Heather Savage	51.045931	Danajia Oliver
51.045881	Kristen Winters	51.045933	Aysia Burney
51.045883	Brian Howard Jr	51.045932	George Finkelstein
51.045882	Madison Colon Schuster	51.045930	Alexzander Green
51.045887	Emma Sparks	51.045934	Mikayla Nolan
51.045884	Alina Kusen	51.045935	Samantha Leeson
51.045885	Jacqueline Cao	51.045939	Tricia Tedore
51.045888	Jaelee Ferguson	51.045938	Stormey Gallagher
51.045890	Jaclyn Loper	51.045936	Rosalie Smullen
51.045894	Jomari Alston	51.045937	Alyssa Strahm
51.045891	Amanda Branscum	51.045941	Anny Subillaga Carballo
51.045895	Brittney Dye	51.045948	Liliana Matthews
51.045892	Kobey Simpson	51.045947	Makenzie Buckholz
51.045896	Vianna Yannekis	51.045940	Briana Goodman
51.045893	Maimuna Dawood	51.045943	Zahraa Al Abbodi
51.045897	Alia Haywood	51.045944	Kamila Gandica Araujo
51.045898	Gabrielle Grdina	51.045946	Ciera Williams
51.045900	Enya Holland	51.045942	Iulia Coclenci
51.045907	Madison Martinez	51.045945	Emileigh Diaz
51.045905	Da'Nyla Diab	51.045950	Kellysue Dec
51.045899	Crystal Tackett	51.045952	Maria Pinzon
51.045908	Makayla Martinez	51.045951	Nicole Geller
51.045901	Rebecca Whetstone	51.045949	Damanpreet Dhillon
51.045903	Megan Booher	51.045954	Alexis Quave
51.045902	Lillian Hura	51.045955	Amanda Stelzer
51.045904	Kaitlyn Thorne	51.045953	Dania Abu Suleiman
51.045906	Courtney Decamp	51.045956	Tyler Cook
51.045910	Geshauna Gregg	51.045958	Hailey Keefer
51.045911	Katherine Domogalla	51.045957	Camryn Flores
51.045909	Hamza Hmeidan	51.045959	Madyson Pegg
51.045912	Derrick McCollins	51.045960	Kaytlin Carlson
51.045913	Jenna Ataya	51.045961	Yara Alsarabi
51.045915	Nevaeh Daniels	51.045962	Madison Gwin
51.045916	Gracen Wagner	51.045963	Alyssa Wittmann
51.045923	Jaclyn Scarborough	51.045964	Jaslynn Marzette
51.045919	Harmony Stewart	51.045965	Mackenzie Birth

51.045966	Destiny Thomas	51.046001	Kiriyah Lee
51.045967	Ravyn Ingram	51.046002	Kaylee Kimble
51.045968	Paria Mahmoudzadeh	51.045999	Reece Williams
51.045969	Joanna Eastman	51.046000	Abigail Parker
51.045971	Gracie Knipp	51.045997	Kailah Miller
51.045970	Andrea Chichester	51.045998	Kristine Hamon
51.045972	Sandra Amonoo	51.046003	Capline Swope
51.045974	Maria Bergoderi	51.046008	Lakin Allen
51.045973	Jabraisa Crankfield	51.046004	Daphne Messer
51.045977	Erdry Torres	51.046005	Jenna Hamilton
51.045976	Anita Dhungana	51.046006	Neelima Wagley
51.045975	Braden Ringo	51.046010	Aimee Dishmond
51.045978	Macie Martel	51.046009	Haley Thacker
51.045983	Teilani Johnson	51.046007	Yakshitha Poonati
51.045981	Amy Sexton	51.046011	Cierra Coon
51.045979	Bashayer Alsaidi	51.046015	Chrisha Ford
51.045980	Tereza Hrynokh	51.046012	Amiyah Sayles
51.045982	Hailey Kiernozek	51.046013	Makenzie Mayle
51.045984	Ricardo Withrow	51.046014	Lillie Dubena
51.045985	Heather Nell	51.046018	Leah Hartman
51.045989	Mikayla Rudisell	51.046016	Lea Rospendowski
51.045986	Brayden Ryan	51.046021	Fadumo Ali
51.045987	Destiny Lane	51.046023	Aissa Akdim
51.045988	Joseline Agustin Raymundo	51.046017	Courtney Tobias
51.045994	Clarissa Thompson	51.046019	Adeel Shafiq
51.045990	Kaylee Robinson	51.046024	Jennat Awawdeh
51.045996	Lillian Short	51.046020	Adriana Lugo
51.045995	Kierstin Vinson	51.046022	Yusuf Amin
51.045991	Emma Surbey	51.046025	<b>Grant Smeltzer</b>
51.045992	Stephanie Cobos	51.046026	Aleigha Tillis
51.045993	Marissa Wartman		

# Expanded Function Dental Auxiliary (51)

EFDA.004	1333	Nicole Hamilton	EFDA.004349	Emily Laferty
EFDA.004	1335	Victoria Rolf	EFDA.004352	Lorraine Rhymer
EFDA.004	1334	Neleah Huston	EFDA.004350	Darine Board
EFDA.004	1337	Hannah Taylor	EFDA.004351	Adriana Guarapo Contreras
EFDA.004	1336	Taylor Miller	EFDA.004353	Ginger L Burcham
EFDA.004	1338	Kaitlyn Bryan	EFDA.004357	Gavin Pitts
EFDA.004	1339	Trinity Terflinger	EFDA.004356	Makinzie Hutchinson
EFDA.004	1345	Yaima Castillo	EFDA.004355	Colleen Hines
EFDA.004	1343	Keerston L Hopkins	EFDA.004354	Amira Franklin
EFDA.004	1346	Merrilee Ewing-Beckley	EFDA.004358	Annamaria Herrera Gonzalez
EFDA.004	1341	Hayley Corder	EFDA.004360	Hasaan Toatley
EFDA.004	1340	Kayla Gavlek	EFDA.004359	Rama Azkoul
EFDA.004	1342	Victoria Young	EFDA.004361	Morgan Rossello
EFDA.004	1344	Ravyn Knoth	EFDA.004367	Katherine Pridgen
EFDA.004	1348	Makenna Rogers	EFDA.004362	Nicholis Hubbard
EFDA.004	1347	Elizabeth Schwieterman	EFDA.004366	Donyae Meade

EFDA.004364	Devon Beach	EFDA.004378	Bridgette Stout-Stanton
EFDA.004363	Meranda Clegg	EFDA.004371	Lexi McNally
EFDA.004368	Sara Fifer	EFDA.004372	Kendall Kohler
EFDA.004365	Chelsey Perez	EFDA.004373	Alexis Messina
EFDA.004369	Myah Redmond	EFDA.004379	Katelyn Danford
EFDA.004370	Jacqlene May	EFDA.004380	Janease Dozier
EFDA.004376	Rebecca George	EFDA.004381	Priyanka Rajendra Chaudhari
EFDA.004377	Heather Tabor	EFDA.004382	Suna Alshatreet
EFDA.004375	Amber Akers	EFDA.004383	Sarah Cornelius
EFDA.004374	Gabrielle Carpenter		
Coronal Polis	hing (8)		
CP.003229	Chelsey Perez	CP.003233	Aimee Jeffrey
CP.003230	Kimberly S Brumbaugh	CP.003234	Alexis Messina
CP.003231	Myah Redmond	CP.003235	Kamila Gandica Araujo
CP.003232	Gabrielle Carpenter	CP.003236	Bridgette Stout-Stanton
Limited Cont	inuing Education (7)		
LCE.000783	Alexa Campbell	LCE.000786	Nicholas Varney
LCE.000782	Priya Sridhar	LCE.000787	Matthew Manas
LCE.000784	David Studt	LCE.000788	Christopher Nguyen
LCE.000785	Dana Rust		
Limited Teaching (2)			
71.000298	Weiqing Liu	71.000299	Sorin Teich
Limited Resid	dent's (1)		
RES.005004	Krunal Pachigar		
Reinstateme	nt – Dentist (3)		
30.025628	Rami Elrefai	30.021970	Gayle Kostyack
30.021528	Christine Forrester-Gill	361621373	carre Roserack
Reinstateme	nt – Dental Hygienist (6)		
31.016493	Cami Jo Campbell	31.010720	Michelle Wisener
31.016798	Megan Cronin	31.008128	Diana Pander
31.013052	Sheena Gregory	31.009583	Aleksandra Pavolotskaya
31.013032	Silesia Gregory	31.003303	
Teledentistry Permit – (1)			

## Teledentistry Permit – (1)

TELE.000053 Amanda L Garrison

# Oral Health Access Supervision Permit – Dental Hygienist (1)

OHAH.000198 Kelly Henry

# Volunteer Certificate – (1)

VOL.000018 Jerome E McMahon

25-09-10 Motion by Dr. Williams, second by Dr. Carr, to ratify all licenses, registrations, certifications, permits, and reinstatements as listed that have been issued since the July Board meeting.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

### Anesthesia and Sedation Permit Application(s)

President Bean stated that the Board's Anesthesia Consultant, Gregory Ness, D.D.S., had reviewed the following individuals who have applied for General Anesthesia and Moderate Sedation Permits. Evaluations have been conducted, and the applicants have been recommended to receive Permits.

#### General Anesthesia

Dr. Lisa Jedacek, North Ridgeville, Ohio

#### **Moderate Sedation**

Dr. Aditi Desai, Milford, Ohio

Dr. Erica McDavid, Mason, Ohio

Dr. Kellie Schwalbach, Chillicothe, Ohio

25-09-11 Motion by Dr. Lakireddy, second by Dr. Brisley-Sedon, to approve the applications and issue permits to the applicants as listed.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

# Committee Reports

#### Education

#### **Board-approved Courses**

Dr. Williams began his report by stating that the Education Committee meeting began promptly at 10:30 with both members, Dr. Wauligman and Ms. Scaramucci, present. He stated that Current Business consisted of a lengthy discussion on "Other courses as approved." Upon conclusion of the discussion, it was decided to let the Education Chairman designate a committee and/or board member to review courses required to be "board-approved" by statute. Once approved by the designated member, ratification of board approval would follow at the next regularly scheduled meeting. Courses required to be "board-approved" by rule will be accepted by sponsors who meet permanent sponsorship definition and not required to be reviewed.

#### Definitions of Education

Dr. Williams informed the Board members that the Committee held a discussion on the definitions of education. He indicated that "continuing" and "remedial" education were already spelled out in paragraph (F)(6) of Ohio Administrative Code rule 4715-3-01 and therefore no further discussion was needed.

#### **New Business**

Dr. Williams said that under "New Business," the Committee had a discussion on educational objectives on permissible duties of the dental auxiliary. He stated that the permissible duties were currently being reviewed by the Research Committee and any duties requiring specific educational objectives will be worked on in conjunction with the Research Committee findings. The question on differences of EFDA education in surrounding states was discussed and it was felt we are comfortable with the Ohio duties. The Committee felt it would be beneficial if information on out-of-state applicants could be made available from Licensing.

#### Board-approved Permit Renewal Course

Dr. Williams informed the members that prior to the meeting they had been asked to consider waiving the 6-hour board-approved anesthesia and sedation permit renewal course requirement for the current biennial renewal. He stated that it was originally projected that there would be several board-approved course options available once the new anesthesia and sedation rules became effective. It was brought to the attention of the Education Committee that only three (3) permit renewal courses have been approved for the current biennium, two (2) of which had been cancelled for lack of registrants. Based on this information and the number of permit holders' inquiries received by the Executive office into board-approved courses, the Committee recommends waiving the permit renewal course requirement for this biennium only. Dr. Williams stated that the meeting adjourned at 11.25 am.

25-09-12 Motion by Dr. Carr, second by Ms. Scaramucci, to approve the Education Committee report as presented.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

25-09-13 Motion by Dr. Wauligman, second by Dr. Kelley, to waive the Board-approved 6-hour continuing education requirement for anesthesia and sedation permit holders for the biennial renewal cycle ending December 31, 2025, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 4715.141.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

#### Law & Rules Review

#### **Draft Rules on Lasers**

President Bean began her report by stating that the Law and Rules Review Committee began at 11:20 am with Dr. Kelley, Dr. Williams, Mr. Richmond representing the Ohio Dental Association, and Ms. Woolard representing the Ohio Dental Hygienists' Association (ODHA) were in attendance. She said that under Current Business the Committee had received an update on the status of the new and amended rules on the use of lasers by dental hygienists. The rules will be required to go through the public comment period and filing with the Office of Common Sense Initiative (CSI) and followed by the Joint Committee on Agency Rule Review (JCARR) processes which will include two (2) public hearings before they could go into effect.

#### Ohio Revised Code Clean-up

President Bean said the Committee talked about ORC 4715.18(A) and the concern seems to be that under current language other non-dental entities may own a practice. In order to prevent a misunderstanding, it has been suggested that only licensed dentists be authorized to own dental practices with a few exceptions. Mr. Richmond expressed concern with "opening up" this section of the statute. Interim Executive Director Santiago countered that every legislative session, "opens up," every chapter of the Revised Code. Ms. Bockbrader offered to provide information from the Attorney General's office which should allow the Committee to move forward with this discussion at a future meeting.

Continuing on, President Bean stated that the Committee furthered their discussions on Teledentistry, specifically the draft rules on silver diamine fluoride (SDF) and interim therapeutic restorations (ITR) courses. She stated that Ms. Woolard had recently met with the Legislative Committee of the ODHA who had reviewed the draft revisions

and provided suggestions and feedback, specifically regarding "hands-on training" in lieu of "clinical" instruction, with the accepted definition to include live-patient and/or manikin. The question of "externship" was discussed because expanded function dental auxiliary typically serve externships while dental hygiene students do not. The Committee decided to leave the language as it is currently.

#### Ohio Administrative Code Clean-up

President Bean stated that the final item under Current Business regarded clean-up of OAC 4715-9-03 on licensure of dental hygienists. She stated that draft revisions included the addition of ADEX and Council of Interstate Testing Agencies, Inc. as accepted regional board examinations for licensure. The draft revisions also included eliminating paragraphs (C)(1) through (C)(4) because they were already included in statute and thereby redundant. OAC 4715-9-04 on dental hygiene teaching licenses was recommended to be rescinded since it has been eliminated in the statute. The meeting was adjourned at 12:12 pm.

President Bean indicated that she had asked Mr. Schaal to provide the Legislative Update and DDH-CSG Update to the full Board due to limitations on time for the Committee. She then asked Mr. Schaal to provide the updates.

#### Legislative Update

Mr. Schaal stated that since the July 30th Board meeting, the General Assembly had been mostly on summer recess. Some committees in the House started to meet, but the two (2) Chambers have not had regular session days yet. On August 27th, the Governor's appointments of the Board's three (3) new members were entered into the Senate's Journal.

Mr. Schaal indicated that the one bill we have been monitoring is House Bill 257 which will limit the rate of interest on medical debt and prohibits garnishment and the reporting of medical debt to a consumer reporting agency. He stated the ban on reporting to a consumer reporting agency applies to health care providers specifically including dentists and dental hygienists. The bill is having a fourth hearing that day in the House Health Committee. The bill is bipartisan and sponsored by the Chair of the Committee, Rep. Jean Schmidt, and Rep. Michele Grim, a member of the Committee. Mr. Schaal indicated that the bill is up for consideration of possible amendments in that hearing.

#### DDH-CSG Compact Update

Mr. Schaal informed the Board members that the number of states in the Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact still stands at twelve (12). Arkansas and Nebraska were the last states to join earlier this year.

Mr. Schaal stated that a basic rule on Clinical Assessments is moving forward. The Commission's Executive Committee will move the rule's publication forward at its next meeting on October 6th and a hearing will be held in conjunction with the Commission's next full meeting on November 10th. A rule on Criminal Background Checks is still to be drafted.

President Bean thanked Mr. Schaal for the updates and then called for a motion to approve the report.

25-09-14 Motion by Dr. Graves, second by Dr. Carr, to approve the Law and Rules Review Committee report as presented.

Voice vote.

Motion carried.

## **Executive Session**

25-09-15 Motion by Dr. Carr, second by Dr. Graves, to move the Board into executive session to consider the appointment, employment, promotion, or compensation of a public employee pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 (G)(1).

Roll call: Ms. Baumann – Yes

Dr. Brisley-Sedon - Yes

Dr. Carr – Yes Dr. Graves – Yes Dr. Kelley – Yes Dr. Lakireddy – Yes Dr. Limardi – Yes Ms. Scaramucci – Yes

Dr. Wauligman – Yes

Dr. Williams – Yes

Dr. Bean - Yes

#### Motion carried.

President Bean stated that the Board was in recess for an executive session at 1:43 p.m. The Board requested that all guests and staff leave and take all personal items, including briefcases, purses, cell phones, tablets, etc., with them when they exit the room. President Bean indicated that they would be invited back into the meeting once the executive session concluded.

#### Open Session

The Board resumed the open session at approximately 2:09 p.m.

Interim Executive Director Santiago stated that he had received word from Dr. Mark Armstrong that he would be arriving just before 3:00 and suggested that the Board continue with the agenda items and possibly take a brief recess until Dr. Armstrong arrived.

President Bean thanked Interim Executive Director Santiago for the information and suggestion. She then questioned whether there was a motion that any of the Board members wished to make as a result of the discussions held in executive session.

# Appointment of New Executive Director

25-09-16 Motion by Dr. Brisley-Sedon, second by Dr. Wauligman, that Miguel A. Santiago, who has served as Interim Executive Director of the Ohio State Dental Board (OSDB) since October 2024, be confirmed through the proper governmental procedural processes as Executive Director of the OSDB, effective immediately.

Roll call: Ms. Baumann – Yes

Dr. Brisley-Sedon – Yes

Dr. Carr – Yes
Dr. Graves – Yes
Dr. Kelley – Yes
Dr. Lakireddy – Yes
Dr. Limardi – Yes
Ms. Scaramucci – Yes

Dr. Wauligman – Yes Dr. Williams – Yes Dr. Bean – Yes

Motion carried.

25-09-17 Motion by Dr. Kelley, second by Dr. Graves, that the Office of Budget and Management's recommended salary of \$140,500.00. which is a seven percent (7%) increase from Mr. Miguel A. Santaigo's current interim salary, be approved.

Roll call: Ms. Baumann – Yes

Dr. Brisley-Sedon - Yes

Dr. Carr – Yes
Dr. Graves – Yes
Dr. Kelley – Yes
Dr. Lakireddy – Yes
Dr. Limardi – Yes
Ms. Scaramucci – Yes
Dr. Wauligman – Yes
Dr. Williams – Yes
Dr. Bean – Yes

Motion carried.

Board members congratulated Executive Director Santiago.

# **Executive Updates**

## President's Update

#### Ohio Dental Association Annual Session

President Bean stated that she wished to remind to all the members of their invitation to attend the Ohio Dental Association (ODA) House of Delegates session the next day during the ODA Annual Session.

#### 2025 Board Meeting Calendar

Dr. Kelley inquired as to whether the Board would be finalizing the Board meeting dates for 2026. President Bean stated that the agenda item was under Anything for the Good of the Board, however, they could amend the agenda to address the 2026 Board meeting schedule of dates for next year. President Bean provided the suggested dates which were discussed and once decided, she requested all the members to make note of the Board meetings on their calendars as follows:

January 28, 2026July 22, 2026March 4, 2026September 16, 2026April 22, 2026October 28, 2026June 10, 2026December 9, 2026

#### Executive Director's Update

Executive Director Santiago stated that he was surprised and humbled by the Board's appointment. He thanked the Board for trusting him in this important position for the people of Ohio, and for the licensees of the Board.

He stated that he will continue to work hard for the people of Ohio, and he wanted to let the Board know what a pleasure it was to work for them.

## Riffe Tower Building Updates

Executive Director Santiago informed the Board members that the Riffe Tower building was having the carpet replaced on every floor. The update to offices were originally scheduled for April. Two (2) weeks ago we were informed that the carpet would be replaced in our office beginning on October 6th. He stated that the replacement will take place overnight over a period of several nights and we are hoping to minimize the disruption to regular staff function as much as possible during this time.

#### Website Updates to Comply with Americans with Disabilities Act

Executive Director Santiago stated that the Board's Licensing Coordinator Samantha Slater has been diligently working to update our website so that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Federal Government has given states a deadline of April 2026 for all website content to be accessible to the visually and hearing impaired. However, we do not have an IT staff, and very little guidance has been given to us as to how to make these changes. Executive Director Santiago stated that our sister Boards are faced with this same challenge. Fortunately, Ms. Slater took the project on in July, and she has done a marvelous job of being proactive so that by April our Board's website will be ADA compliant. He stated that the content may not look attractive, because documents in Portable Document Format (PDF) are not the preferred format, so all PDF documents will also have to be HTML readable.

#### Certified Fraud Examiner Course

Executive Director Santiago stated that during the first week of October, he would be taking a course and corresponding examinations to become a Certified Fraud Examiner. From October 6th through the 10th, he would be checking his emails but may not always be available to respond quickly. He stated that during that time, if there is any emergency, please reach out to Deputy Director Schaal.

#### **Dental Testing and Regulatory Summit**

Executive Director Santiago stated that during the second week in October, he would be attending the Dental Testing and Regulatory Summit in Texas along with Deputy Director Schaal. During that time, he would also be checking and responding to emails. In their absence, if there are any emergencies, please reach out to Ms. Slater. Executive Director Santiago commented that he looked forward to seeing some of our Board members at the conference.

#### Advisory Committee Meeting – October 3, 2025

Executive Director Santiago stated that the Advisory Committee Meeting to review and revise the Ohio Revised Code is scheduled for October 3rd.

#### Anesthesia Consultant Gregory Ness, D.D.S. Retiring

Lastly, Executive Director Santiago informed the members that the Board's Anesthesia Consultant Dr. Gregory Ness would be retiring at the end of the year. Board members questioned what the position entailed, and clarification was provided. Executive Director Santiago stated that if any of the members knew of a potential candidate, they should contact him at the Board office.

President Bean thanked Executive Director Santiago for his update and moved on to Anything for the Good of the Board.

# Anything for the Good of the Board

President Bean stated that the 2026 Board meeting schedule was the only item on the original agenda but it had already been addressed. She stated that Ms. Scaramucci had indicated just prior to the meeting that she had an item for the agenda.

# Ohio Department of Health Oral Health Screening for 3<sup>rd</sup> Graders

Ms. Scaramucci informed the members that every five (5) years the Ohio Department of Health (ODH) conducts oral health screening of third graders, and that she participated in the most recent screenings. The results of those screenings have been published and available on the ODH website. Ms. Scaramucci briefly went over the results with the members as follows:

- 51% of students have a history of decay
- 19% of students have untreated decay
- 42% of students have sealants
- 20% of students have had no dental visits within the past year
- 19% of students needed urgent care

Ms. Scaramucci stated that ODH performs these screenings every 5 years with the 3rd grade class and schools are invited to participate but not all of them do. She stated that she was responsible for the schools in Montgomery, Hamilton, Clermont, and Butler counties but only went to approximately twenty (20) schools. She commented that this is a good way to assess the information although most of the results vary only minimally from the past five (5) years.

Dr. Wauligman informed the members that caries in children were reduced by 85% from the first year to the second in schools in the Cincinnati area that have dental programs within the schools themselves. However, the schools have difficulty finding dental hygienists to work within the program and the schools currently have two (2) openings.

President Bean thanked Ms. Scaramucci and Dr. Wauligman for the information provided and then called for a recess until 3:00 pm.

# Board Business (Continued)

#### **Presentations**

#### Presentation by Mark Armstrong, D.D.S., Chair, American Board of Dental Examiners (ADEX)

President Bean welcomed former Board member and former President Dr. Mark Armstrong, who is currently Chair of the American Board of Dental Examiners (ADEX) and is before them to share updates to ADEX.

Dr. Armstrong thanked President Bean and stated that on September 1<sup>st</sup>, the CDCA-WREB-CITA and the American Board of Dental Examiners (ADEX) officially merged as a single organization under the unified name American Board of Dental Examiners. The merger reflects a shared commitment to establishing national dental licensure standards while further linking and optimizing exam development and exam administration. He then provided a detailed PowerPoint presentation on the merger of the two (2) organizations highlighting examination portability, nationally consistent standards, greater board involvement across jurisdictions, greater protection of the public through more standardized examinations and continued updates as dentistry evolves.

Dr. Armstrong also provided detailed data on the schools and number of dental and dental hygiene candidates examined during 2024 and 2025. He then explained the benefits of the CompeDont Tooth and SimProDH Patient for examination simulation of tooth structure and patients. Dr. Armstrong fielded questions from the Board members on the differences in the ADEX examination and other examinations. He stressed to the members that ADEX actively seeks information regarding new board members to inform, educate, and involve those interested in participating in the licensure exam process. He then encouraged the Board members to contact ADEX directly to learn more.

President Bean thanked Dr. Armstrong for his continued involvement and for the detailed presentation.

# Adjourn

President Bean then asked if there were any additional items the Board members wished to discuss. Hearing none, President Bean thanked the members for their attendance and reminded them that the next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 5, 2025. She then adjourned the meeting at 3:40 p.m.

CANISE Y. BEAN, D.M.D., M.P.H., PRESIDENT

PAUL KELLEY, D.D.S., SECRETARY